
  

 

 
 

Solicitation Information  
25 November 2011 

 
Addendum #1 

 
 

LOI # 7449196 
  
TITLE: Architectural and Engineering (A & E) Services– Hospital Consolidation. (New 
Forensic, Adult, and Geriatric Psychiatric Facility for the Rhode Island Department of 
Behavioral Health, Developmental Disabilities and Hospitals (BHDDH) 
  
Submission Deadline: 7  Dec 2011 @ 11:30 AM (Eastern Standard Time)   
 
PLEASE NOTE:  SUBMISSION DEADLINE HAS BEEN EXTENDED FROM 12/2/11 AT 
11:30 AM TO 12/7/11 AT 11:30 AM. 
 
THE FOLLOWING DOCUMENTS ARE ATTACHED: 
 
1.  MODIFICATIONS TO THE SOLICITATION WITH VENDOR QUESTIONS AND 
STATE RESPONSES. 
 
2.  MINUTES OF THE MANDATORY PRE-BID MEETING HELD ON NOVEMBER 17, 
2011. 
 
3.  SIGN IN SHEET FROM THE MANDATORY PRE-BID MEETING. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Jerome D. Moynihan, C.P.M., CPPO  
Assistant Director for Special Projects 
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RFP 7449196. 
Architectural and Engineering (A & E) Services–  Hospital Consolidation (New Forensic, Adult, and 
Geriatric Psychiatric Facility for the Rhode Island Department of Behavioral Health, Developmental 
Disabilities and Hospitals (BHDDH)) 
 
 
 
 

I. MODIFICATIONS TO THE SOLICITATION:  
 

1. On page 6, paragraph 2.b., states “…Building and Life Safety Code requirements for Use 
Groups I-2 and I-3.”   
DELETE and REPLACE with “…Building and Life Safety Code requirements for all 
applicable Use Groups.”   

 
2. On page 7, paragraph C.1.a.1), states “…design services required by code to allow for use 

groups I-2 and I-3…”   
DELETE and REPLACE with “…design services required by code to allow for 
applicable use groups…”   

 
3.  On page 10, paragraph 5.d.1.a, states “…experience and qualifications with juvenile 

corrections projects of a similar size, scope and use.”  
DELETE “juvenile corrections projects” 
and REPLACE with “psychiatric facilities”.  

 
II. QUESTIONS SUBMITTED: 

 
1. Q.  Page 13 of 16, part D1, The use of subcontractors or other vendors must receive prior 

approval by the state. When does this approval take place and do subcontractors need to 
register at State Purchasing and have a Certificate of Authorization?  
A. The approval takes place on or about the time that the successful vendor is awarded a 
purchase order. Subcontractors do not need to register.  

2. Q.  Do Apprenticeships apply to design sub-contractors?  
A. No. 

3. Q. Will Certificate of Need be filled at outset of design phase services?  
A. Yes. 

4. Q. Were alternate means of project approach/methodology/delivery, such as design build 
discussed/considered?  
A. Yes. 

5. Q. How much, if any of the project is funded by ARRA and what paperwork (including 
“Jobs Created” and building High Performance documentation) will be required?  
A. It does not appear at this time there will be any ARRA funding and thus paperwork in 
regard to ARRA is not anticipated.  

6. Q. Does 28 million include FF&E and does FF&E include medical equipment?  
A. No, it does not include FF & E and most medical equipment is not included.  

7. Q. What type and level of security is required? Will it tie into existing system?  
A. It is now anticipated that this will be a high and medium security facility and that 
security will be largely handled within the facility. 

8. Q. Will this new facility replace Elizabeth Slater Hospital?  
A. This facility will replace a portion of the Eleanor Slater Hospital services. 
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9. Q. Does Phase 1 include a review by RIDOH?  
A. This is undecided at this time.  

10. Q. On page 10, section 5.d.1)a),  it requests our “experience and qualifications with 
juvenile corrections projects”, we assume this is an error but please clarify.     
A. Please see Addendum #1, Item I.3 above. 

11. Q. No space is allocated on the plans or room list for food services.  Please confirm that 
their will be no commercial kitchen, cold or dry good storage or cafeteria within the new 
building.  If meals will be prepared off site should staging space be allocated to facilitate 
delivery, warming and removal?  If this component was overlooked, will there be food 
service provided for staff and visitors as well as the patient population?  
A. This facility is part of a contiguous hospital footprint.  At the time of our meetings 
with the users, no commercial kitchen was required; food was to be brought in and served 
in the Dayroom areas. Your Phase I services require verification of this issue.   

12. Q. Only 300 sf is designated on the zero level for laundry.  Is it anticipated that linens 
with be sent off site?   If so should clean and soiled linen holding rooms be designated 
near the service entry?  
A. User requirements were considered and are reflected in the system of Laundry, Clean 
and Soiled Linen areas in each ward, and the size of the basement Laundry room indicted 
in the block plans.  Your Phase I services require verification of this issue.   

13. Q. No medical or dental care services are currently allocated on the room list or floor 
plans.  Do you anticipate that these will not be provided in this facility?  
A. Most dental services will likely be provided off-site. Some medical services will be 
provided on-site in the Exam rooms indicated in the block plans. Your Phase I services 
require verification of this issue.   

14. Q. Are spaces for recreational, occupational and vocational therapies intentionally 
omitted from the program?  
A. No, the Community Resource room on the 3rd floor includes those functions. 

15. Q. Only 1,500 sf is designated for both the central mechanical equipment room and the 
central electrical room.  Has the adequacy of this amount of space been tested?  
A. The actual size of those areas in the basement will be determined as the project 
develops.  

16. Q. How will materials management be handled?  We don’t see significant space allocated 
for this essential function.  
A. This issue will be addressed in your Phase I services and the actual size of those 
spaces will be verified.  

17. Q. Often a facility such as this has maintenance facilities that include a workshop for 
minor repairs of equipment and furniture.  Is this planed to be accommodated off site?  If 
so, should a staging area be provided for outgoing and incoming equipment & furniture?  
A. This issue will be addressed in your Phase I services. At the time of our review with 
the users, staging for those items are in the basement General Supply room in Alternate 1 
(Sheet A-5). 

18. Q. The bright orange area labeled “Locker/Breakroom” and “shower” on the first level 
plan is a color not keyed on the legend.  Which staff will this space serve?  
A. This area serves the Forensic Staff. 
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19. Q. I cannot find the Block diagrams resulting from the feasibility study.  Please provide 
navigation to the diagrams and all available information pertaining to this solicitation.   
A. They are at http://www.purchasing.ri.gov./RIVIP/bidsearch.asp , then search on bid # 
7449196, the select “D” under Info.  

20. Q. Would you be able to email me a list of the people and companies that attended 
yesterday’s pre-proposal briefing for the proposed Psychiatric Facility?   
A. They are included as an attachment to Addendum #1.  

21. Q. Does the 10% MBE requirement apply to the Phase I scope of services? 
A. Yes. 

22. Q. Will the demolition scope associated with Phase I services have LEED 
considerations? If so, is there a LEED points target? 
A. A LEED target for demolition has not been determined, however, demolition and site 
restoration should contribute to the LEED certification for the new facility.   

23. Q. Are building commission services anticipated for the project? If so, will this be a 
separate contract held by the Rhode Island Division of Purchases? 
A. Yes, building commissioning services are anticipated for this project and they are not 
part of a separate contract.  

24. Q. On page 7, the scope of the project shall include......”but not limited to architectural 
services required to prepare Certificate of Need.”   Since this project is for another State 
agency are the Certificate of Need and architectural services required? If so, is it part of 
the selected consultant’s scope of work to prepare and submit this document? 
A. Yes, this is required as part of the scope of work. The Certificate of Need will be 
prepared with the support of the end users.  
 

25. Q. Is the proposed project within 100 feet of a wetlands boundary and therefore requires 
a biologist to prepare a submission to the RI DEM.? 
A. That is unclear at this time. 

26. Q. On page 10, paragraph 5.d.1.a, states “experience and qualifications with juvenile 
corrections projects ...  Is this a  misprint and should refer to behavioral health? 
A. Please see Addendum #1, Item I.3 above. 

27. Q. With regard to the required SF 330 for this pursuit, please advise if the prime’s SF 330 
can be combined with the subs’.  Specifically, can we combine Sections A-D, Section F 
(10 projects total for the entire team, Section G, and Section H?  
A. They can be combined as long as sub-contractor’s work is clearly identified as such. 

28. Q. Is RI able to and open to alternate delivery methods utilizing IPD and Lean 
Construction Principles to ensure more reliable cost control and efficiencies for the 
project? 
A. Our plan at the current time is for this to be Design/Bid/Build.  Your budget should be 
based on this assumption.  
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29. Q. Item #7 on page 3 of the RIVIP Generated Bidder Certification states that we certify 
that “I/we will maintain required insurance during the entire course of the contract 
resulting from the offer contained herein.”  Will you please provide the insurance 
requirements for this project? 
A. Section # 31 of State’s General Conditions of Purchase. 

30. Q. Where can I find the State’s General Conditions of Purchase / General Terms & 
Conditions?  
A. At the website www.purchasing.ri.gov.  
Click on General Information (left column) 
Click on Rules & Regulations 
Click on Appendix A – General Terms & Conditions  

INSURANCE - All construction contractors, independent tradesmen, or firms 
providing any type of maintenance, repair, or other type of service to be performed on 
state premises, buildings, or grounds are required to purchase and maintain coverage with 
a company or companies licensed to do business in the state as follows: 
a. Comprehensive General Liability Insurance - 
1) Bodily Injury $1,000,000 each occurrence $1,000,000 annual aggregate 
2) Property Damage $500,000 each occurrence $500,000 annual aggregate 
Independent Contractors Contractual - including construction hold harmless and other 
types of contracts or agreements in effect for insured operations Completed Operations 
Personal Injury (with employee exclusion deleted) 
b. Automobile Liability Insurance - 
Combined Single Limit $1,000,000 each occurrence 
Bodily Injury 
Property Damage, and in addition non-owned and/or hired vehicles and 
equipment 
c. Workers' Compensation Insurance - 
Coverage B $100,000 
The Purchasing Agent reserves the right to consider and accept alternate forms and plans 
of insurance or to require additional or more extensive coverage for any individual 
requirement. Successful bidders shall provide certificates of coverage, reflecting the State 
of Rhode Island as an additional insured, to the Office of Purchases, forty-eight (48) 
hours prior to the commencement of work, as a condition of award. Failure to comply 
with this provision shall result in rejection of the offeror's bid. 

 
-End of Addendum 1 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
a. Pre-bid meeting minutes 
b. Pre-bid sign in sheet 
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Rhode Island Department of Administration 
Division of Capital Projects and Property Management 
One Capitol Hill 
Providence, RI  02908 
 
Pre-bid/Proposal Conference Minutes 

LOI# 7449196 
A & E Services – Hospital Consolidation (BHDDH) 
 
Date:    17 November 2011   1:00 pm  

 

   

Location:  Fire Board Headquarters  
1 Regan Court, Varley Building #46,  
at the Pastore Complex in Cranston, RI 02920   

 
 

  

 
Attending:   
Arn Lisnoff, Chief Property Management  
Department of Administration, Division of Capital  
Projects and Property Management  
 
Mikael Powell, Architect  
Department of Administration, Division of Capital  
Projects and Property Management 
 
Vendors                
 

   
 

    
    
Notes: 

 
1.  The meeting began at approximately 1:00 pm with the signing of the attendance sheets.  
 
2.  Arn Lisnoff introduced himself and Mikael Powell.  Mr. Lisnoff stated that we are assembled at this 
mandatory Pre-Bid meeting to discuss A & E services for LOI# 7449196– Hospital Consolidation. 
Services are to be provided in two phases, generally – Phase 1 to provide documents and oversight of 
demo work on this building (Varley) and programming services for the new psychiatric hospital.  Phase 
II requires full A & E services for the new facility through construction and close-out.   
 
3. Mr.  Lisnoff stated that only one representative from the firm or entity submitting a proposal will need 
to sign the attendance sheet. If you are a subcontractor it is not necessary to sign in, but you may.   
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4.  Mr. Lisnoff said that the sign-in sheet, meeting minutes, and questions/answers will be posted.  We 
will do our best to answer questions here, but the posted addendum prevails over any discrepancies with 
what is said in this meeting.  

 
5. Mr. Lisnoff reiterated that the submission deadline is 2 Dec 2011 @ 11:30 AM (Eastern 
Standard Time). Late proposals will not be accepted. The official time clock, in the reception 
area of the Division of Purchases determines the end of this process.  Proposals are received at 
RI Dept. of Administration Division of Purchases, 2nd floor 
One Capitol Hill, Providence, RI 02908-5855. He advised attendees to peruse the Purchasing 
website regularly. Mr. Lisnoff announced that after this meeting adjourns, we will tour some 
parts of this building. 

 
6.  Mikael Powell asked if there is any firm or entity submitting a proposal who has not had a 
representative sign the sign-in sheet. One person responded that they had not, and he came 
forward and signed. Mr. Powell also said that the next event in this solicitation is the last 
date/time that questions can be submitted. It is listed on page one of the solicitation to be no later 
than 21 Nov 2011 @ 12:00 Noon (Eastern).  
 
7.  Mr. Powell said that technical proposal must be submitted no later than 2 Dec 2011 @ 11:30 
AM. The Division of Capital Projects and Property Management will review the proposal and 
then schedule an interview with those firms most apparently in line for the award. After the 
interview, short-listed firms will be notified. These short-listed firms will be invited to submit a 
professional fee proposal within two weeks of their notification.  We anticipate the project being 
awarded in January, 2012. 
 
8.  Mikael Powell said that basically, the State of Rhode Island is seeking a qualified firm to 
provide demo plans and oversight of the demolition process for the Varley building and provide 
full architectural, engineering and design services for the new forensic, adult, and geriatric 
psychiatric facility. Several independent cost estimates are required from a certified cost 
estimator who doesn’t work for the firm. The new building is a psychiatric facility. One level is 
for forensic patients, so there is higher security required on the first floor.  The remaining 
building is for geriatric psychiatric and adult psychiatric patients. The awarded AE firm will 
meet with the users of the space and required jurisdictional entities, for the design the facility. 
DOA/CPPM met with the hospital group earlier this year, and the block plans that are included 
in the solicitation documents met their general approval, however the awarded firm will need to 
verify user needs and all the information graphically presented in the solicitation, as part of their 
programming and further work.  
 
9. Mr. Lisnoff said that the State wants to provide a normative environment, especially for the 
adult and geriatric psychiatric population, so undoubtedly there will be two ‘main’ entrances to 
the facility.  Geriatric psychiatric patients have health concerns that require hospital care. Those 
geriatric psychiatric units have medical requirements as well as psychiatric, which include 
medical gasses, emergency response and specialized medical equipment.  This is a multi-use 
facility, likely containing user groups I-2, I-3 and B, and much consideration will have to be 
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given to separation.  Mr. Lisnoff noted that the authorities having jurisdiction for a hospital are 
probably more than the AE firms are used to working with. Those authorities are not only 
associated with building and fire codes and the commission on disabilities, but coordination 
might also include health department reviews, Medicaid and Medicare accreditation agencies 
requirements, and insurer’s requirements.   
 
10. Mr. Lisnoff said that we have a fixed budget amount and you must design to that level and 
provide value engineering, at no additional cost, if the projected project costs exceed that 
amount. At the point when we see there are any discrepancies between the projected costs and 
the amount of money we have available, the State will have to look for more money or, the more 
probable scenario-  scale back the scope. You are asked to submit a budget based upon the dollar 
amount in the solicitation document.  
 
11.  Mr. Powell reiterated that we are asking for complete services, including security, design 
services for selecting finishes for the new facility and the specification of new furnishings and 
coordination with moving furniture and equipment from existing spaces into the new facility.   
Also, there is oversight administration of the demolition and, of course, construction 
administration. 
 
12. Mr. Lisnoff said that we are looking for a LEED Silver building or equivalent, as indicated in 
the solicitation. Also, he said that after we adjourn we will walk through some areas of the 
building; if there are any questions from the site tour, then they can be submitted through the 
Divisions of Purchases.  Mr. Lisnoff said that the room for the pre-bid meeting is typical of the 
finishes throughout. This building is steel frame construction with masonry veneer and a pre-cast 
concrete plank roof.  The floors are mainly terrazzo with some vinyl composition tile.  There 
have been several upgrades to the building and building systems over time.  Some plans are 
available.  Most, but not all, hazardous materials have been identified and removed by the 
Owner. All available reports will be provided to the successful bidder.  
 
13. Mr. Lisnoff asked if there were any questions. The following are those questions and 
answers:   
 

a. QUESTION: Do I understand correctly that FF & E is included in the design 
services? Is medical equipment etc… part of that? 
ANSWER: FF & E services are included and they are outlined in the solicitation; 
For instance, services also include the specification and coordination of medical 
equipment. The cost of FF & E items is not included in the “total construction 
costs”.  

b. QUESTION: Is there a Central Utility plant and what services are provided to the 
site?   
ANSWER: There is steam to the site and power. We do require redundant power 
and a back-up generator is needed. Provisions of utility  services will need to be 
investigated.  
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c. QUESTION: Is there an asbestos abatement plan already done? 
ANSWER: There possibly is, but we are unsure how up-to-date it is. You cannot 
assume that the plan is complete.  

d. QUESTION: Will the short-listed firm have to provide a price for an abatement 
plan? 
ANSWER: Yes. 

e. QUESTION: What does that mean that it is mostly done? Has it been tested for 
Mercury or PCP – all that kind of stuff? 
ANSWER: It is believed that most of the materials have been tested, but it doesn’t 
hurt to do a final survey. We will give all the information that we do have to the 
awarded bidder.  

f. QUESTION: Is the study that you did posted? Will it be available? 
ANSWER: We will attempt to get it but we don’t guarantee that. 

g. QUESTION: Is there a clarification or delineation of site boundaries? 
ANSWER: That will culminate from the design process.  

h. QUESTION: At what point will as-builts of the existing facility be available and 
do you have them? 
ANSWER: We will give the awarded bidder the documents that we have. We 
have architectural drawings of the building, but it has been renovated frequently 
and we probably do not have as-builts. 

i. QUESTION: Do you anticipate a state employee to be a project manager on this 
project? 
ANSWER: We expect to have a work team. We expect to have an Owner’s 
representative  and perhaps a User’s representative.  

j. QUESTION: Who is the official end user? 
 ANSWER: The end user is Rhode Island Department of Behavioral Health, 
Developmental Disabilities and Hospitals. The goal is to create a contiguous 
hospital footprint, anchored by the new building and the Regan building, to have 
more efficient operation, better patient care, and a building designed especially 
for the population.  

k. QUESTION: How is owner furnished-owner installed, owner furnished-
contractor  installed, owner furnished-vender  installed items being defined? Is 
that something that the AE will determine or will the OPM kind of steer that ship?  
ANSWER: OFOI, OFCI, OFVI will be determined as the project develops with 
input from the AE, users, DOA Capital Projects, owners representatives and 
vendors. The solicitation document describes typical coordination services. The 
firm should assume that “they own everything” reasonably regarded as services 
unless the document clearly states that you do not.   

l. QUESTION: If you have a state employee OPM will they be writing purchase 
orders for items that are out of scope? 
ANSWER: It is not determined that we will have a state employee Owners 
Project Manager.  

m. QUESTION: Is this RFP to replace the one in 2010? 
ANSWER: Yes. 
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n. QUESTION: Are the design services already funded and how much of the Project 
is funded? 
ANSWER: Money is currently encumbered for this project and its design 
services.  Additional funding is currently being sought to provide FF & E.    

o. QUESTION: I think that it was mentioned in the request for proposal that the 
estimator has to be approved by the state? 
ANSWER: Mr. Lisnoff said that the estimator has to be approvable by the State. I 
don’t imagine that we will not approve an independent, certified cost estimator 
that meets the requirements listed in the LOI. 

p. QUESTION: If you do lower the budget, how will the AE stuff get negotiated?  
ANSWER: The solicitation indicates that the AE firm is responsible to provide 
value engineering, working in concert with the state to adjust scope and product. 
The AE firm should allow enough time in their budget for VE to occur. Likely, 
the awarded firm will be keeping tabs of the cost of systems and materials as the 
project progresses and have a good idea of the cost of the project before it goes to 
the independent estimator.   

q.   QUESTION: Under building demolition it says we are to provide  
oversight. Is that full-time oversight? 
ANSWER: Oversight for demolition is a Construction Administration type of 
services where there are key places to be at certain times.  Since that piece of 
work will likely be a part of the LEED effort, you will need to observe that the 
work is being performed correctly according to the demolition documents.   

r. QUESTION: Is information from which the block designs were developed 
available to the bidders? 
ANSWER: The attachment, which is online, includes the block plans and are the 
culmination of our efforts.  There is no source material that will be provided 
during the solicitation phase.  

s. QUESTION: Do you have a functional program? 
It is outlined in the solicitation that the awarded AE firm will develop that as part 
of their initial services.  They will verify and confirm with the user the existing 
block plans and list of spaces to create a design that meets the requirements of the 
State and end users.   
 

14.  Mikael Powell asked finally if there any firm or entity submitting a proposal who has not 
had a representative sign the sign-in sheet.  Hearing nothing to the contrary, the meeting was 
adjourned at approximately 2:00 pm.  
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